
 

 
 

 
        

Town Hall – 11 S. Main Street, Pittsford – Lower Level 

           Tuesday, March 3, 2020 – 6:00 pm 

 

Call to Order 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Presentation 

  ERCN-TV and Town IT Department Head will report on live streaming of meetings 

 

Minutes 

Public Comment 

Approval of Minutes of Meeting of March 3, 2020  

 

Legal Matters 

Public Comment 

CCA Agreement with Joule Assets Inc. and Roctricity LLC. 

Set Public Hearing on Local Law #3 of 2020: Amending Town Code  

            Computer System Security Breach Notification Policy 

 

Financial Matters 

Public Comment 

Surplus 

Vouchers 

 

Operational Matters 

            Public Comment 

Award Bid for Erie Canal Park and Preservation 

             

Personnel Matter 

            Public Comment 

            Hiring Resolution 

 

Other Business 

 

Public Comment 

 

Executive Session - Personnel 

 

Adjournment 

 

SUPERVISOR 

William A. Smith, Jr. 

COUNCIL MEMBERS 

Kate Bohne Munzinger, Deputy 

Supervisor 

Kevin Beckford 

Cathy Koshykar  

Stephanie Townsend 

TOWN BOARD AGENDA 



Minutes of the Town Board for March 3, 2020 
 

1 
 

DRAFT 
TOWN OF PITTSFORD 

TOWN BOARD 
MARCH 3, 2020 

 
 
 
Proceedings of a regular meeting of the Pittsford Town Board held on Tuesday, March 3, 2020 at 6:00 P.M. local 
time in Pittsford Town Hall. 
 
PRESENT: Supervisor William A. Smith, Jr.; Councilmembers Kevin Beckford, Cathy Koshykar, 

Katherine B. Munzinger and Stephanie M. Townsend. 
 
ABSENT:  None. 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Staff Members:  Spencer Bernard, Chief of Staff; Jessie Hollenbeck, Recreation Director; 

Paul J. Schenkel, Commissioner of Public Works; Greg Duane, Finance Director; Robert 
B. Koegel, Town Attorney; Linda M. Dillon, Town Clerk, Suzanne Reddick, Assistant to 
Supervisor, and Shelley O’Brien, Communications Director. 

 
ATTENDANCE: There were sixteen (16) members of the public in attendance, one additional staff 

member and an interpreter. 
 
Supervisor Smith called the Town Board meeting to order at 6:00 P.M., noting that the Town has an ASL 
interpreter present and available should anyone at the meeting need this service.  The Town Clerk noted all Town 
Board members present.  Supervisor Smith led the Pledge to Flag. 
 
 

SUPERVISOR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS 
1. Erie Canal – NYS Power Authority:  The Supervisor and Mayor Corby will be meeting this Friday, March 

6, with NYS Canal Corporation Executive Director, Brian Stratton, and members of his staff, to discuss 
the State Power Authority’s recently announced plans for the Erie Canal. 

2. The Supervisor’s monthly open house for residents, Supervisor Saturday, will be postponed from March 7 
to March 14, in order for Supervisor Smith to participate in the County Executive’s briefing for municipal 
leaders on the COVID-19 coronavirus, scheduled for Saturday morning, arch 7th.   

 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
No public comments were offered regarding the Minutes of the February 25, 2020 Town Board meeting. 

 
MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 25, 2020 MEETING APPROVED 
A Resolution to approve the Minutes of the February 25, 2020 meeting was offered by Deputy Supervisor 
Munzinger,  seconded by Councilmember Townsend, and voted on by members as follows:  Ayes:  Beckford, 
Koshykar, Munzinger, Townsend and Smith.  Nays: None. 
 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 
RESOLVED, that the Meeting Minutes of the February 25, 2020 are approved as written. 
 
 

OPERATIONAL MATTERS 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
Suzanne Shaw, 127 Woodland, spoke regarding the Farm Leases, inquiring whether the leases are with the 
same farmers.  
 

FARM LEASES ON TOWN-OWNED LAND APPROVED 



Minutes of the Town Board for March 3, 2020 
 

2 
 

Supervisor Smith reviewed the proposal to approve the Farm Leases on Town-owned land with Town Board 
members, in keeping with the intent of the Town’s Greenprint to continue cultivation of these lands. This action to 
approve farm leases is appropriate and customary for these circumstances and they are exempt from bidding 
requirements.  Supervisor Smith confirmed that the farm leases have been with the same Pittsford farmers over 
the years. 
 
Upon request by Councilmember Beckford, Commissioner Schenkel further explained the leases and parcels that 
are being leased, indicating that most are very small parcels, irregularly shaped and somewhat hard to get to for 
cultivating and farming.  The leases are with primarily the same four (4) farmers who lease and cultivate the 
parcels that are closest to their homes, in most cases.  In addition, they are the only farmers that have expressed 
an interest.   
 
Commissioner of Public Works Paul Schenkel responded to several questions from councilmember Koshykar, 
confirming that:  

 No other farmers have expressed interest in leasing these lands 

 The sample lease provided in the packet for Board review is the same for all of the tenant farmers, save 
for the description of the land covered and the name and address of the farmer;  

 All the farmers have already signed the leases in anticipation of the Town’s approval 

 Commissioner Schenkel will add the date and month in the appropriate space on the first page of each 
lease; 

 Maps of the parcels to be let are attached to each lease.   
 
Thereafter, Supervisor Smith made a motion to approve the farm leases as proposed, seconded by Deputy 
Supervisor Munzinger, and voted on by members as follows:  Ayes:  Beckford, Koshykar, Munzinger, Townsend 
and Smith.  Nays:  none. 
 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 
RESOLVED, that the Supervisor is authorized to execute farm leases with the following farmers upon receipt of 
certificates of insurance, from January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2022 in the amount of $25.00 per acre, per 
year: 
 
 Robert Lehman  12.5 acres in the Autumn Ridge Subdivision 
    57.5 acres on the Royal Coach Property 
    $1,750.00 Total 
 
 Larry Knickerbocker 8.0 acres on Knickerbocker Road 
    15.0 acres on the Royal Coach Property 
    %575.00 Total 
  
 Marc Kreiger  7.0 acres on Tobey Road 
    10.0 acres on Stone Road 
    26.0 acres is the Isaac Gordon Nature Park 
    19.0 acres Heather Heights 
    5.5 acres on Willard Road 
    $1,687.50 Total 
 
 Mike Silco  18.0 acres on Hedgewood Lane 
    $450.00 Total 
 
 
 

AUTHORIZATION FOR NYSDOT TO ADJUST TOWN-OWNED INFRASTRUCTURE IN 
REGARD TO REPAVEMENT OF JEFFERSON ROAD APPROVED 
Supervisor Smith noted that the State DOT needs permission from the town to adjust the height of a manhole 
cover on Jefferson Road as part of the State’s impending project to repave Jefferson Road) from Mitchell Road to 
Garnsey Road in Perinton. 



Minutes of the Town Board for March 3, 2020 
 

3 
 

Following brief discussion, a motion to approve this authorization to the NYSDOT was offered by Councilmember 
Townsend, seconded by Councilmember Beckford, and voted on by members as follows:  Ayes:  Beckford, 
Koshykar, Munzinger, Townsend and Smith.  Nays:  none. 
 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 
 
WHEREAS, the New York State Department of Transportation proposes the construction, reconstruction or 
improvement of Route 96 from Mitchell Road to Garnsey Road, Towns of Perinton and Pittsford, Monroe County 
P.I.N. 4096.68.321, and 
 
WHEREAS, the State will include as part of the improvements of the above mentioned project, adjust 
approximately one (1) sanitary manhole elevation, so as to not be in conflict with the proposed construction.  The 
work will be performed in accordance with the requirements of the owner, under Section 10, Subdivision 24, of the 
State Highway Law, as shown in the contract proposal relating to the project, and 
 
WHEREAS, the service life of the adjusted and/or replaced utilities has not be extended, and 
 
WHEREAS, the State will provide for the performance of the above mentioned work, as shown in the contract 
proposal relating to the above mentioned project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 
RESOLVED, that the Pittsford Sewer District approves the adjustment or relocation of their sanitary sewer main, 
force main, and manhole elevation adjustments for the above mentioned work performed on the project, as 
described in the project proposal relating to the project and that the Pittsford Sewer District will maintain or cause 
to be maintained the adjusted facilities performed as above stated and as shown on the contract plans. 
 
Be it further 
RESOLVED, that the Supervisor has the authority to sign any and all documentation that may become necessary 
as a result of this project as it relates to the Pittsford Sewer District, and 
 
Be it further 
RESOLVED, that the Town Clerk of the Town of Pittsford is hereby directed to transmit five (5) certified copies of 
the foregoing Resolution to the New York State Department of Transportation. 
 
 

BID DATE SET FOR REFUSE AND RECYCLING SERVICES FOR TOWN OWNED 
FACILITIES 
A Resolution to Set a Bid Date for Refuse and Recycling Services for Town Owned Facilities was offered by 
Supervisor Smith, seconded by Deputy Supervisor Munzinger, and voted on by members as follows:  Ayes:  
Beckford, Koshykar, Munzinger, Townsend and Smith.  Nays:  none. 
 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 
RESOLVED, that the Town Board sets a bid opening date for April 9, 2020, for Refuse and Recycling Services for 
Town Owned Facilities. 
 
 

BID DATE SET FOR BAGGED, BUNDLED AND CONTAINERIZED YARD DEBRIS 
COLLECTION SERVICES 
A Resolution to Set a Bid Date for Bagged, Bundled and Containerized Yard Debris Collection Services was 
offered by Councilmember Townsend, seconded by Deputy Supervisor Munzinger, and voted on by members as 
follows:  Ayes:  Beckford, Koshykar, Munzinger, Townsend and Smith.  Nays:  none. 
 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 
RESOLVED, that Town Board authorizes that a bid date be set for Thursday, March 26, 2020 at 11:00 a.m. for 
the Bagged, Bundled, and Containerized Yard Debris Pickup. 
 
 



Minutes of the Town Board for March 3, 2020 
 

4 
 

PERSONNEL MATTERS 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
No public comments were offered. 

 
 
AMENDMENT TO FEBRUARY 25, 2020 STATUS/SALARY CHANGE APPROVED AND 
CURRENT RECOMMENDED STATUS/SALARY CHANGE APPROVED 
 
Following review of status/salary change recommendations submitted to Town Board by the Personnel Direction,  
the first of which serves to amend a typo in last month’s personnel resolution, Supervisor Smith offered a motion 
to approve the proposed amendment and status/salary changes.  This was seconded by Deputy Supervisor 
Munzinger, and voted on by members as follows:  Ayes:  Beckford, Koshykar, Munzinger, Townsend and Smith.  
Nays:  none. 
 
The following amendment to the February 25, 2020 Status/Salary Change Resolution was declared carried as 
follows: 
 
RESOLVED, that the Town Board approves the amendment to the status and salary changes for the following 
employee approved at the February 25, 2020 Town Board meeting : 
 

Name   Position  Reason for Change  Rate         Effective Date 

James Byrne  Librarian I PT  Library Certification  $23.12  02/25/2020 
 
and be it further 
RESOLVED, that the Town Board approves the status and salary change for the following employees: 
 

Name        Position   Reason for Change  Rate           Effective Date 

Joshua Butler       Laborer   CDL – Class B   $18.63  03/02/2020  

Bryan Dahar       Sewer Specialist II- FT Promotion   $23.12  03/09/2020 

Matt Schneider     Sewer Specialist II- FT Promotion   $23.12  03/09/2020 

AJ VanScott       Sewer Specialist II- FT Promotion   $23.12  03/09/2020 

 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
TOWN SUPPORT FOR LOWERING SPEED LIMIT IN VILLAGE OF PITTSFORD 
 
Supervisor Smith reported that the Village of Pittsford seeks to lower to 25mph the speed limit throughout the 
Village.  The Village has asked for a statement or resolution of support for this change from the Town Board.  
Apparently the State Department of Transportation requires support from the Town as a condition of proceeding 
with the Village’s request.  The Supervisor noted that the Town had offered its support in an earlier attempt by the 
Village to lower its speed limit, which died in the State Assembly.  An Act of the State Legislature signed by the 
Governor is necessary to authorize the lowering of the Village speed limit to 25mph.   
 
For this purpose Supervisor Smith moved to approve a resolution in support of reducing the speed limit in the 
Village of Pittsford to 25 mph.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Townsend, and voted on by 
members as follows:  Ayes:  Beckford, Koshykar, Munzinger, Townsend and Smith.  Nays:  none. 
 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 
 
RESOLVED, that the Town of Pittsford supports the proposal of the Village of Pittsford to lower the speed limit in 
the Village to 25 miles per hour.  . 
 
 



Minutes of the Town Board for March 3, 2020 
 

5 
 

MEETING WITH MAYOR WARREN/CITY OF ROCHESTER BEING SCHEDULED – 
CORONA VIRUS/MUTUAL SUPPORT 
Supervisor Smith reported that he has been in contact with Mayor Warren’s office for the purpose of discussing 
opportunities for mutual support among municipalities should the corona virus result in diminished municipal work 
forces, in order to continue municipal services. 
 
 

ARRANGEMENTS FOR “ZERO WASTE” EVENTS 
Supervisor Smith reported that Town Staff had conferred with the head of Impact Earth, to discuss “zero waste” 
arrangements for upcoming Town events.  The Town has had a successful business relationship with Impact 
Earth for a number of years, including the Town’s Composting Initiative, launched at the Spiegel Community 
Center in 2019 and operated by Impact Earth.  Impact Earth has given the Town a quote of $100 to provide “zero 
waste” arrangements for the upcoming joint Town/Village Arbor and Environment Day events.  The Supervisor 
noted that the cost for this type of service has decreased over time.  He has obtained a quote from Impact Earth 
of $1,600 to provide “zero waste” arrangements for the Town’s main summer events, Paddle and Pour in May and 
the food Truck and Music Fest in September.  Councilmember Koshykar asked whether Impact Earth was eligible 
to be a bidder on the bid solicitations approved earlier in this meeting, for containerized waste collection and for 
waste collection from Town facilities.  Supervisor Smith responded that Impact Earth could submit a bid for these 
services if it wished, and could be awarded a contract for either or both services if it were the lowest responsible 
bidder.   
 
 

REFUSE DISTRICTS 
In light of the success of the Town’s Refuse District initiative, Councilmember Townsend wondered whether it 
could be useful for the Town to offer an Information Session, perhaps at the Library, to review how to go about 
creating a Refuse District and the process involved.  The Supervisor noted that such meetings have been held, 
but usually and more usefully, on a neighborhood-by-neighborhood basis, in neighborhoods that have expressed 
interest in creating a refuse district.  He noted the very detailed information available to everyone on the Town’s 
Refuse District web page and that where there’s been interest in creating a district, people have been quick on 
the uptake.  He also expressed concern that we will have important public hearings and meetings coming up 
before long on the Community Choice Aggregation initiative and the Active Transportation Plan where we really 
want and need public participation; that it’s typically difficult enough to encourage residents to attend public 
meetings of any kind and that there’s a real concern of overdoing it with too many summonses to a public 
meetings within a short period of time.  Board discussion that followed included continuing making specific, clear 
and extensive information on Refuse district creation available on the Town website and in our other publications.   
 
 

UPDATE ON RTS NEW SERVICE ROUTES 
Councilmember Townsend gave an update to members regarding the new service, under Re-Imagine RTS, that 
will begin on June 29, 2020.  She distributed and reviewed a map that outlines the Pittsford/Eastview Community 
Mobility Zone and the supplemental On-Demand zone around it.  She noted that this new schedule with the 
Mobility zone and the supplementary on-demand zone will operate for six (6) months and then will be reviewed by 
RTS.   The Board expressed the wish that this review will lead to RTS expanding the on-demand zone, to more 
fully accommodate people with disabilities.    
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
Lee Fox asked about changes to RTS bus routes in Pittsford and learned that the bus will continue to travel into 
the Village on Monroe Avenue, but will now proceed north past the colleges to the park and ride facility near St. 
John Fisher College.   
 
 

19th AMENDMENT COMMEMORATION 
Councilmember Townsend reported that she and Deputy Supervisor Munzinger met at the Susan B. Anthony 
House to discuss ideas for the 19th Amendment Celebration. The next step is for Deputy Supervisor Munzinger to 
meet with community volunteers and Town staff to share the ideas and plans for the event. 
 



Minutes of the Town Board for March 3, 2020 
 

6 
 

 

UPDATES ON CHANNEL 12 STREAMING AND CCA 
Supervisor Smith noted that there should be a presentation to the Board at its next regular meeting on the subject 
of live streaming of Town Board meetings.  He noted that the Town has provided online, on-demand streaming of 
Town Board meetings for the past several years, with video available usually a day after the meeting and that the 
video has been broadcast on Cable Channel 12.   In response to Councilmember Beckford’s question about 
progress on CCA, the Supervisor noted that he had met with Roctricity this week and the three towns are very 
close to an agreement on a contract with Joule Assets and Roctricity as CCA Administrator.  Concluding the 
contract is imminent and Joule can then proceed to solicit bids for electricity from 100%renewable sources.   
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
1. John Sussman of 29 Sturbridge Lane, thanked the Supervisor for providing opportunities for public 

comment throughout Town Board meetings and encouraged live streaming of meetings. 
 

2. Councilmember Koshykar referred to a message from a resident who couldn’t attend the meeting; it will 
be included in the record of the meeting or otherwise acknowledged. 

 
 
As there was no further business, the Supervisor adjourned the meeting at 6:40 P.M. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Linda M. Dillon 
Town Clerk 

 



MEMORANDUM 
To: Town Board Members 

From: Robert B. Koegel 

Date: March 12, 2020 

Regarding: CCA Agreement with Joule Assets Inc. and Roctricity LLC 
 

For Meeting On: March 17, 2020 

 

 As you know, the Town Board has previously adopted a local law authorizing the 
establishment of a Community Choice Aggregation (“CCA”) program within the Town.  A CCA 
program allows the Town to negotiate fixed-rate, potentially lower-priced energy from suppliers 
for the benefit of its residents and to choose an energy supply from renewable sources. 
Typically, municipalities such as the Town do not negotiate directly with energy suppliers or 
otherwise administer their CCA programs.  Instead, they enter into contractual relations with 
third parties knowledgeable in the field to run the programs. 
 
 The Town, along with the towns of Brighton and Irondequoit, and the Village of Pittsford, 
has been negotiating collectively with Joule Assets Inc., as program administrator, and 
Roctricity LLC, as program organizer, to come up with separate contracts with each 
municipality to run the programs.  Submitted herewith for the Board’s consideration is a 
Community Choice Aggregation Agreement among the Town, Joule, and Roctricity. 
 
 Under the terms of the Agreement, Joule will attempt to procure for the benefit of Town 
customers an energy supplier which will supply 100% renewable energy at a net savings 
compared to the 12-month historical average, measured from the bid issuance date, of the 
RG&E residential rate for electricity charged to residential customers.  Should Joule be unable 
to perform this task within 6 months of the effective date of the Agreement, the Town may 
terminate the Agreement by written notice to Joule.  If Joule succeeds, the Agreement will 
continue to the later of 5 years from its effective date or the expiration of an electricity supply 
agreement between a selected supplier and the Town (though the Town will have the right, but 
not the obligation, to extend the Agreement).  Joule will be paid for its services under the 
Agreement directly by the selected energy supplier, and neither the Town nor participating 
Town customers will be responsible for paying Joule.  Joule will be responsible for making any 
payments to Roctricity. 
 
 Should the Town Board wish to have the Town enter into the Agreement, it may use the 
following resolution. 
  

RESOLUTION 
 
 RESOLVED, that the Community Choice Aggregation Agreement among the Town, 
Joule Assets Inc. and Roctricity LLC, in the form attached hereto, be and hereby is approved.  
 



 
 Page 1 of 10 
  
  
  
CCA Agreement –03-06-20 
 

COMMUNITY CHOICE AGGREGATION AGREEMENT 
 

 This Community Choice Aggregation Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered into as of 
March 6, 2020 (the “Effective Date”) by and between the TOWN OF PITTSFORD, a municipal 
corporation of the State of New York, having its principal offices at 11 South Main Street, 
Pittsford, New York 14534 (“Municipality”), JOULE ASSETS INC., a Delaware corporation having 
its principal offices at 22 Edgemont Drive, Katonah, New York 10536 (“Joule”) and ROCTRICITY  
LLC, a New York limited liability company having its principal offices at 758 South Ave, 
Rochester, New York 14620 (“Roctricity”) (Municipality, Joule, and Roctricity are referred to 
individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”).   

 
RECITALS 

 
 WHEREAS, Joule is in the business of providing consulting and program administration 
services in connection with an energy procurement program known as Community Choice 
Aggregation, which replaces the incumbent utility as the default supplier for all eligible customers 
within the Municipality (“CCA”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, Roctricity is a CCA organization formed to bring Community Choice 
Aggregation to Rochester and surrounding areas; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the New York State Public Service Commission has authorized municipalities to 
participate in CCA pursuant to the CCA Order (as defined below); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Municipality desires to engage Joule and Roctricity to provide 100% renewable 
energy through CCA at a net savings to its residents in accordance with the Response Documents.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein, the Parties 
hereto agree as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. DEFINITIONS 

1.1 The following terms shall have the meanings ascribed below: 
(a)  “Applicable Law” means the CCA Order and all applicable local, state, and federal statutes, 

ordinances, laws, rules and regulations. 
(b) “CCA Administrative Fee” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.1. 
(c)  “CCA Order” means the April 21, 2016 “Order Authorizing Framework For Community 

Choice Aggregation Opt-Out Program” issued by the PSC in Case 14-M-0224, “Proceeding on Motion 
of the Commission to Enable Community Choice Aggregation Programs” as may be amended or 
supplemented from time to time by the PSC. 

(d)  “Default Service” means the energy supply service provided by the Distribution Utility to 
customers who are not currently receiving electric service from an ESCO.  



 
 Page 2 of 10 
  
  
  
CCA Agreement –03-06-20 
 

(e)  “Distribution Utility” means the owner or controller of the means of distribution of the 
natural gas or electricity that is authorized to be the distribution utility regulated by the Public Service 
Commission for a particular service area. 

(f) “Electricity Supply Agreement” or “ESA” means the Electricity Supply Agreement that may 
be entered into by and between Municipality and the Selected Supplier that contains the terms and 
condition concerning electricity supply procurement.  

(g) “Participating Customer” means a customer who participates in the CCA Program in 
accordance with Applicable Laws including without limitation a customer who is eligible to participate 
on an opt-out basis and has not opted out, and customer who is eligible to participate on an opt-in basis 
and has opted-in.  

(h) “Public Service Commission” or “PSC” means the New York State Public Service 
Commission or the New York State Department of Public Service acting as staff on behalf of the 
Public Service Commission. 

(i)  “RFP” means the Request for Proposals for Community Choice Aggregation (CCA) 
Administrator issued on behalf of the Town of Irondequoit, Town of Brighton, Town of Pittsford, and 
Village of Pittsford issued March 1, 2019. 

(j) “Response Documents” means the Proposal: CCA Administrator dated April 5, 2019 
submitted by Joule Assets, Inc. to the Town of Irondequoit, Town of Brighton, Town of Pittsford, and 
Village of Pittsford, together with the Appendices attached thereto.   

(k) “Selected Supplier” means, in accordance with the Response Documents the supplier 
selected by the Municipality to provide 100% renewable energy at a net savings compared to the 
12-month historical average, measured from the bid issuance date, of the Rochester Gas & Electric 
residential rate for electricity charged to residential customers. 

ARTICLE 2. RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF JOULE 

2.1 Joule shall perform all of the activities designated or assigned to Joule in accordance with the RFP 
and Response Documents, both of which are hereby incorporated by reference as if restated in their 
entirety, including but not limited to: 

(a) Create an implementation and data protection plan;  

(b) Educate and notify the public; 
(c) Lawfully and securely procure, transfer, and store anonymized and customer-specific 

Program data received by a utility as confidential information on behalf of the Municipalities, 
pursuant to an approved data protection plan;  

(d) Analyze and report data;  
(e) Conduct an analysis and report to Municipality on market conditions, pricing, and estimated 

cost savings based on projected bid and launch timeline; 
(f)  Procure local clean energy generation;  



 
 Page 3 of 10 
  
  
  
CCA Agreement –03-06-20 
 

(g) Integrate distributed energy resources;  
(h) Pre-qualify prospective energy suppliers; 
(i) Draft and negotiate requests for proposals for 100% renewable energy commodity supply 

contracts and renewable energy credits;  

(j) Comply with legal and regulatory requirements for the CCA Program; 
(k) If Municipality enters into an ESA, process customer enrollment and opt-outs; and 

(l) Provide continued support throughout the term of this Agreement.  
2.2 In accordance with the Response Documents and subject to the request and approval of the 
Municipality, Joule shall develop proposals and provide consulting services in connection with other 
municipal energy programs, including but not limited to demand response, demand management, 
microgrids, distributed energy resources, and/or community distributed generation. Regardless of 
whether Municipality elects to implement a CCA Program, in the event that Municipality desires to 
implement other Municipal Energy Programs and engage Joule’s assistance in connection with such 
implementation, the Parties may, but are not required to, enter into a subsequent agreement describing 
the scope of Joule’s services and the payment to Joule in connection therewith. 
 

2.3 Unless otherwise agreed to by the Parties in writing, and without limiting Joule’s ability to 
communicate with the public, Joule shall only communicate with the Municipality through its 
Supervisor, and/or his designee(s).   
2.4 Joule shall comply with all Applicable Laws.  

ARTICLE 3. RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF ROCTRICITY 

3.1   Roctricity shall perform all of the activities set forth in Response Documents, which is hereby 
incorporated by reference as if restated in its entirety, that are assigned or otherwise delegated to 
Roctricity by Joule.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Joule shall be jointly and severally liable with 
Roctricity for any activities assigned or otherwise delegated to Roctricity, and Joule shall undertake 
any or all such assigned or delegated tasks if Roctricity is unable or unwilling to do so.  

3.2 Unless otherwise agreed to by the Parties in writing, and without limiting Roctricity’s ability to 
communicate with the public, Roctricity shall only communicate with the Municipality through its 
supervisor, and/or his designee(s).   
3.3 Roctricity shall comply with all Applicable Laws. 

ARTICLE 4. ROLE OF PROGRAM ORGANIZER FOR CCA PROGRAM 

4.1   The Parties acknowledge and agree that Joule has entered into an agreement with Roctricity to 
act as Program Organizer in connection with the CCA Program in accordance with the Response 
Documents (the “Program Organizer Agreement”). Joule shall be solely responsible for any fees or 
payments due for services provided by the Program Organizer. 



 
 Page 4 of 10 
  
  
  
CCA Agreement –03-06-20 
 

4.2   Notwithstanding the foregoing, Joule shall be responsible for delivering all services and fulfilling 
all obligations as set forth in the Response Documents.  Joule agrees that it will not terminate the 
Program Organizer Agreement without the consent of the Municipality, nor shall it enter into a new 
Program Organizer Agreement with any other entity without the consent of the Municipality, which 
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

ARTICLE 5.    

                                         INTENTIONALLY OMITTED 

ARTICLE 6. RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF MUNICIPALITY 

6.1 Municipality shall have the right to determine, in its sole discretion, when Joule and Roctricity 
will begin its outreach to the public; it being understood that outreach to the public has commenced.    

6.2 Municipality will cooperate with Joule to identify price benchmarks, pre-approved contract 
structures, sourcing requirements and other standards for acceptance of a compliant bid to solicit and 
procure potential suppliers.   
6.3 Municipality:  

(a) Will support Joule and Roctricity’s communication through traditional town channels (e.g. 
web-site, e-mail, lists), and provide public space for educational and decision-making meeting.   

(b) Shall assist Joule by reasonably promoting such Municipal Energy Program(s) to the public 
with Joule’s guidance and input;  and 

(c) Authorizes Joule to act on behalf of the Municipality to secure release of data applicable to 
potential or actual Municipal Energy Programs that is held by others, including but not limited to 
residential and small commercial customer account and load information under the authority granted 
by the respective PSC Orders. Municipality further agrees to furnish Joule such information, to execute 
and deliver such additional documents, and to take such other actions as may be reasonably necessary 
for Joule to secure release of such data. 

 
6.4 Municipality shall comply with all Applicable Laws. 

ARTICLE 7. PAYMENT. 

7.1 Upon commencement of an ESA, the Parties acknowledge that Joule will be paid by the 
Selected Supplier per kWh (volumetrically) for electricity purchased for all Participating 
Customers during the duration of the ESA a fee of $0.0008/kWh (8/100ths of one cent/kWh) per 
ESA contract year, or another fee agreeable in writing to both Parties (the “CCA Administrative 
Fee”);  

7.2 The Parties hereby acknowledge that, in the event the Distribution Utility requires a payment 
for records related to electricity usage of potential Participating Customers, Joule is authorized to 



 
 Page 5 of 10 
  
  
  
CCA Agreement –03-06-20 
 

pay the Distribution Utility up to $0.16 (16 cents) per record, or such other amount authorized by 
the Public Service Commission, and may seek reimbursement of such payment from the Selected 
Supplier as part of an ESA (apart from the CCA Administrative Fee).  In no event shall 
Municipality be liable for this or any other amounts due Joule, Roctricity, and/or the Distribution 
Utility. In no event shall Participating Customer be liable for the above charge for records related 
to electricity usage, or any other amounts due Joule or Roctricity.The Parties hereby acknowledge 
that Joule, and not Municipality or any Participating Customer, shall be responsible for making 
payments, if any, to Roctricity.  

ARTICLE 8. TERM AND TERMINATION 

8.1 This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall terminate:  

(a) If no ESA is executed within six (6) months from the Effective Date, terminate upon written 
notice from Municipality to Joule; or  

(b) If one or more ESAs are executed or other agreements are entered into between the Parties in 
relation to municipal energy services,  this Agreement shall expire or terminate the later of: (i) five (5) 
years after the Effective Date; and (ii) at the expiration or termination of such ESA that is last in effect.  
Before the date on which this Agreement would expire by its terms, Municipality shall have the right 
to extend this contract for one (1) additional term of up to three (3) years by providing written notice 
thereof to Joule; and thereafter for two additional terms of up to three (3) years each thereafter subject 
to the written approval of Joule. 
8.2 Termination for Cause. This Agreement may be terminated for cause by either Party (the “Non-
breaching Party”) upon a material breach of the other Party (the “Breaching Party”) if such 
Breaching Party has failed to cure such material breach within thirty (30) days of receiving written 
notice of such breach from the Non-breaching Party.  
8.3 In the event of any termination or expiration of this Agreement: 

(a) Joule shall deliver to Municipality copies of all files and documents pertaining to any Program; 
and 

(b) Except as expressly provided herein, all obligations of the Parties hereto pursuant to this 
Agreement shall terminate. 

 

ARTICLE 9. INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 

9.1 Joule shall secure and maintain, at its own expense, errors and omissions insurance in an amount 
not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per claim/annual aggregate for claims arising out of 
the performance of professional services and caused by negligent acts or omissions, with a deductible 
not to exceed $20,000 without prior written approval.  

9.2 Joule shall require the Program Organizer to secure and at its own expense, automobile insurance 
in an amount not less than $100,000 per person, $300,000, per accident, and $500,000 for property 



 
 Page 6 of 10 
  
  
  
CCA Agreement –03-06-20 
 

damage per accident.   
9.3 In addition to any other remedies available to the Municipality at law or equity, and 
notwithstanding any other provision contained herein, Joule shall indemnify, defend and hold 
harmless the Municipality and the Municipality’s elected officials, officers, employees, agents, 
representatives and independent contractors (the “Municipality’s Indemnified Parties”), from and 
against any and all costs, claims, liabilities, damages, expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ 
fees), causes of action, suits or judgments, incurred by, on behalf of or involving any one of the 
Municipality’s Indemnified Parties to the extent arising directly from or in connection with a claim 
by a third-party (i.e. a person other than the Municipality’s Indemnified Parties) arising out of: (i) 
any material breach of this Agreement by Joule (including its obligations, covenants, representations 
or warranties), except to the extent caused by the actions (or omissions where there is a duty to act) 
of the Municipality or its elected officials, officers, employees or agents; or (ii) any material action 
or omission taken or made by Joule in connection with Joule’s performance of this Agreement, 
except to the extent caused by the actions (or omissions where there is a duty to act) of the 
Municipality or its elected officials, officers, employees or agents.   
 

ARTICLE 10. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY  

10.1 Joule and Roctricity shall comply with all of the following provisions of article:  

(a) Joule and Roctricity shall not discriminate on the basis of age, race, creed, color, national 
origin, sex, sexual orientation, disability, marital status, or handicap status in the performance of 
services or programs pursuant to this Agreement.  

(b) Joule and Roctricity agrees to make a good faith effort to employ minority group persons 
and females and that in hiring employees and performing work under this Agreement or any 
subcontract hereunder, Joule, Roctricity, and their subcontractors, if any, shall not, by reason of 
age, creed, race, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, disability, marital status, or 
handicap, discriminate against any person who is qualified and available to perform the work to 
which the employment relates.  

(c) Joule and Roctricity agree to ensure that applicants are employed and that employees are 
treated during their employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, age or national 
origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, 
demotions or transfers, recruitment and recruitment advertising, layoffs, terminations, rates of pay 
and other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship.  

(d) If Joule and/or Roctricity is found to have engaged in discrimination in employment on 
the grounds of age, race, creed, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, disability. marital 
status, or handicap status, by any court or administrative agency that has jurisdiction pursuant to 
any State or Federal Equal Opportunity Laws and regulations, such determination will be deemed 
to be a breach of contract and this Agreement will be terminated in whole or part without any 
penalty or damages to the Town on account of such cancellation or termination. 

(e) Joule shall cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in all subcontracts, if any, for any 



 
 Page 7 of 10 
  
  
  
CCA Agreement –03-06-20 
 

work covered by this Agreement so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor. 

ARTICLE 11. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. 

11.1 During the Term, a Party (as the “Disclosing Party”) may disclose or make available to the other 
Party (as the "Receiving Party") proprietary information in writing, trade secrets, or third-party 
confidential information (including utility confidential information) that is marked or identified as 
"confidential” (collectively, "Confidential Information"). Confidential Information shall not 
include oral information or other information that, at the time of disclosure: (i) is or becomes generally 
available to and known by the public other than as a result of, directly or indirectly, any breach of this 
Section 11.1 by the Receiving Party or any of its representatives; (ii) is or becomes available to the 
Receiving Party on a non-confidential basis from a third-party source, provided that such third party 
is not and was not prohibited from disclosing such Confidential Information; (iii) was known by or in 
the possession of the Receiving Party or its representatives prior to being disclosed by or on behalf of 
the Disclosing Party as demonstrated by written records; (iv) was or is independently developed by 
the Receiving Party without reference to or use of, in whole or in part, any of the Disclosing Party's 
Confidential Information as demonstrated by written records; or (v) is required to be disclosed 
pursuant to applicable federal, state or local law, regulation or a valid order issued by a court or 
governmental agency of competent jurisdiction (the “Order”), provided that in such event the 
Receiving Party shall give the Disclosing Party prompt written notice of the Order and shall reasonably 
cooperate with the Disclosing Party prior to disclosure to provide the Disclosing Party with the 
opportunity, at Disclosing Party’s expense, to interpose any and all objections it may have to disclosure 
of the information required by the Order, or to otherwise limit any disclosure required by the Order to 
the maximum extent permitted by law and all information disclosed shall otherwise remain 
Confidential Information until another exception exists described in this Section 11.1. The Receiving 
Party shall: (A) protect and safeguard the confidentiality of the Disclosing Party's Confidential 
Information with at least the same degree of care as the Receiving Party would protect its own 
Confidential Information, but in no event with less than a commercially reasonable degree of care; (B) 
not use the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information, or permit it to be accessed or used, for any 
purpose other than to exercise its rights or perform its obligations under this Agreement; and (C) not 
disclose any such Confidential Information to any third party, except to the Receiving Party's 
representatives, or approved subcontractors, who need to know the Confidential Information to assist 
the Receiving Party, or act on its behalf, to exercise its rights or perform its obligations under the 
Agreement, and who are under confidentiality obligations at least as protective as this Agreement. The 
Receiving Party shall be responsible for any breach of this Section 11.1 caused by any of its 
representatives or subcontractors. In the event that a request is known to have been made by anyone 
seeking a court order disclosing any Confidential Information, the Receiving Party will provide (if 
permitted by the court order) the Disclosing Party with at least fifteen (15) days notice identifying the 
information sought to be disclosed, the name, address and telephone number of the third party seeking 
disclosure, the reason for the requested disclosure, the case style, case number and court having 
jurisdiction over the action, if any, in which disclosure is sought, and will provide copies of the request 
for disclosure. 

11.2 The Parties agree that any Confidential Information disclosed by Disclosing Party shall only be 
disclosed to those officials, employees, representatives, and agents of the Receiving Party that have a 



 
 Page 8 of 10 
  
  
  
CCA Agreement –03-06-20 
 

need to know in order to administer the Agreement.  
11.3 Compliance by the Municipality with the New York State Freedom of Information Law ("NY 
FOIL") shall not be a violation of this Article and Municipality shall have no duty to litigate or defend 
any action against it under the NY FOIL; provided, however, if legally permitted Municipality shall 
provide notice to Joule of any such compliance prior to disclosure which results in the disclosure of 
information otherwise prohibited by this Agreement.  

11.4 Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Municipality is permitted to share Confidential Information 
that is not utility confidential information with other municipal corporations that have authorized the 
entering into a contract with Joule.   
11.5 The obligations under this Article 11 shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement 
for two (2) years.  

ARTICLE 12. MISCELLANEOUS 

12.1 The Parties acknowledge and agree that Joule and Roctricity is an independent contractor and is 
not an agent or employee of Municipality. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create a 
relationship between Joule and Municipality of a partnership, association, or joint venture.  
12.2 Joule and Roctricity covenants that the individuals engaged by Joule and Roctricity in any 
capacity, including but not limited to, employees, subcontractors and independent contractors, are 
authorized to work in the United States as required by Applicable Law. Joule and Roctricity each 
represent and covenant that it has completed the I-9 verification process for all persons who perform 
services for Municipality as required by Applicable Law.  

12.3 No Party may assign this Agreement without obtaining express, written consent from the other 
Parties prior to assignment, which may be granted or withheld in the consenting Party’s sole discretion.   

12.4 This Agreement, the RFP, and Response Documents together constitute the entire understanding 
of the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede all prior negotiations, discussions, 
undertakings and agreements between the Parties. This Agreement may be amended or modified only 
by a writing executed by the duly authorized officers of the Parties. It is understood and agreed that 
this Agreement may not be changed, modified, or altered except by an instrument, in writing, signed 
by the Parties.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall 
be deemed an original but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
This Agreement may be executed by facsimile or digital signature (including DocuSign).  

12.5 Any controversy or claim, whether based upon contract, statute, tort, fraud, misrepresentation or 
other legal theory, related directly or indirectly to this Agreement, whether between the Parties, or of 
any of the Parties’ employees, agents or affiliated businesses, will be resolved under the laws of the 
State of New York without regard to conflict of laws principles, in any court of competent jurisdiction 
in the county in which the Municipality is located.  
12.6 If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable, such provision shall be 
deemed deleted from this Agreement and the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall continue 
in full force and effect.  



 
 Page 9 of 10 
  
  
  
CCA Agreement –03-06-20 
 

12.7 Section headings are inserted in this Agreement for convenience only and are not to be used in 
interpreting this Agreement. 

 
[Signature page to follow] 

  



 
 Page 10 of 10 
  
  
  
CCA Agreement –03-06-20 
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly 
authorized representatives, as required by the Applicable Laws of the city, town or municipality and 
the laws, rules and regulations of the State of New York as of the date and year first above written.  

 
Joule Assets Inc. 

 
By: ____________ 

Name: Michael Gordon 
Title:  CEO 

Town of Pittsford 

 
By: ____________ 

Name: William A. Smith, Jr. 
Title:  Supervisor  

 
 

Roctricity LLC 

 
By: ____________ 

Name: Susan K. Hughes-Smith 
   Title:  Member 
 
 

 
 



MEMORANDUM 
To: Town Board Members 

From: Robert B. Koegel/Joy E. Brown 

Date: March 11, 2020 

Regarding: Local Law #3 of 2020 -  Town Code Change to update Computer System Security 

Breach Notification Policy  
 

For Meeting On: March 17, 2020 

 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

New York signed into law the Stop Hacks and Improve Electronic Data Security Act 
("SHIELD Act") (S.5575B/A.5635) amending New York's data breach notification law codified 
at sections 899-aa and 899-bb of the General Business Law and section 208 of the State 
Technology Law.  The SHIELD Act introduces significant changes, including: 

 Broadening the definition of "Private Information." The Act broadens the definition of 
"private information" to include biometric information and username/email address in 
combination with a password or security questions and answers. It also includes an 
account number or credit/debit card number, even without a security code, access code, 
or password if the account could be accessed without such information. 

 Expanding the definition of "Breach." The Act expands the definition of "breach of the 
security of the system" to include unauthorized "access" of computerized data that 
compromises the security, confidentiality, or integrity of private information, and it 
provides sample indicators of access.  

 Clarifying “Substitute Notice by E-mail.” The Act creates a new exception where notice 
by e-mail is no longer permissible when the breached information includes the data 
subject’s e-mail address in combination with a password or security question and 
answer.   

Sentences have been added to and modified within Section 8-3, 8-4 and 8-8 of the Town 
Code in order to update the “Computer System Security Breach Notification Policy” to comply 
with the changes introduced in the New York SHIELD Act. 

 

A public hearing must be held to enact Local Law #3 of 2020, a copy of which is 
submitted herewith.  A copy of sections 8-3, 8-4 and 8-8 of the existing Code showing the 
proposed changes is also submitted for ease of reference. 

RESOLUTION 
 

I move that a public hearing be set for April 21, 2020 at 6:00 pm, local time, at the Pittsford 
Town Hall, to consider Proposed Local Law #3 of 2020; Amending Chapter 8 of the Town Code, 
entitled “Computer System Security Breach Notification Policy”, in accordance with the formal 
hearing resolution submitted herewith. 

 



 

 
1 

 
 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE 
 

TOWN BOARD OF THE 
 

TOWN OF PITTSFORD 
 

NEW YORK 
 

AS FOLLOWS: 
 

LOCAL LAW NO. 3 OF 2020: 
THE ADOPTION OF PROPOSED LOCAL LAW 

NO. 3 of 2020: AMENDING CHAPTER 8  
OF THE TOWN OF PITTSFORD MUNICIPAL CODE 

ENTITLED “COMPUTER SYSTEM SECURITY  
BREACH NOTIFICATION POLICY” 

 
 
Sec. 1  Title 
 
This Local Law shall be known as “Local Law No.3 of 2020: Amending Chapter 8 of The 
Town of Pittsford Municipal Code Entitled “Computer System Security Breach Notification 
Policy.”   
   
 
Sec. 2  Amendment to Existing Law   
 
The Pittsford Town Code, Chapter 8, shall be amended to revise §§ 8-3, 8-4, and 8-8 to 
read, as follows: 
 
 § 8-3. Authority. 
 
 This chapter is enacted pursuant to the New York State Constitution, New York 
 Municipal Home Rule Law § 10, General Business Law §§ 899-aa and 899-bb, 
 and New York State Technology Law § 208, and may be amended from time to 
 time by Town Board resolution or local law. 
 

§ 8-4. Definitions. 
 
As used in this chapter, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated: 



 

 
2 

 
BREACH OF SECURITY OF THE SYSTEM — unauthorized access to or 
acquisition of, or access to or acquisition without valid authorization, of 
computerized data that compromises the security, confidentiality, or integrity of 
private information maintained by the Town. Good faith access to, or acquisition 
of, private information by an employee or agent of the Town for the purposes of 
the employee or agent is not a breach of the security of the system, provided that 
the private information is not used or subject to unauthorized disclosure.  
In determining whether information has been accessed, or is reasonably believed 
to have been accessed, by an unauthorized person or a person without valid 
authorization, the Town may consider, among other factors, indications that the 
information was viewed, communicated with, used, or altered by a person without 
valid authorization or by an unauthorized person. 
 
In determining whether information has been acquired, or is reasonably believed 
to have been acquired, by an unauthorized person or a person without valid 
authorization, the Town may consider the following factors, among others: 
 
A. Indications that the information is in the physical possession and control of an 

unauthorized person, such as a lost or stolen computer or other device 
containing information; or 

 
B. Indications that the information has been downloaded or copied; or 

 
C. Indications that the information was used by an unauthorized person, such as 

fraudulent accounts opened or instances of identity theft reported. 
 

CONSUMER REPORTING AGENCY — Any person or entity which, for 
monetary fees, dues or on a cooperative nonprofit basis, regularly engages 
in whole or in part in the practice of assembling or evaluating consumer 
credit information or other information on consumers for the purpose of 
furnishing consumer reports to third parties, and which uses any means or 
facility of interstate commerce for the purpose of preparing or furnishing 
consumer reports. A list of consumer reporting agencies may be obtained 
upon request to the State Attorney General. 
 
DEPARTMENT — Any board, division, committee, commission, council, 
department, public authority, public benefit corporation, office or other 
governmental entity performing a governmental or proprietary function for 
the Town. 
 
PERSONAL INFORMATION — Any information concerning a natural person 
which, because of name, number, personal mark, or other identifier, can be 
used to identify that person. 
 
PRIVATE INFORMATION —  



 

 
3 

 
A. Private Information means either: 

 
(i.) Personal information consisting of any information in combination with 

any one or more of the following data elements, when either the data 
element or the combination of personal information plus the data element 
is not encrypted or encrypted with an encryption key that has also been 
accessed or acquired: 

 
1. social security number;  
2. driver’s license number or non-driver identification card number;  
3. account number, credit or debit card number, in combination with any 

required security code, access code, password or other information 
which would permit access to an individual's financial account;  

4. account number, or credit or debit card number, if circumstances exist 
wherein such number could be used to access to an individual's 
financial account without additional identifying information, security 
code, access code, or password;  

5. biometric information, meaning data generated by electronic 
measurements of an individual's unique physical characteristics, such 
as fingerprint, voice print, or retina or iris image, or other unique 
physical representation or digital representation which are used to 
authenticate or ascertain the individual's identity; or 

 
(ii.) a user name or e-mail address in combination with a password or security 

question and answer that would permit access to an online account. 
 

B. "Private information" does not include publicly available information that is 
lawfully made available to the general public from Town records. 

 
TOWN — The Town of Pittsford, County of Monroe. 
 
 
§ 8-8. Method of notification. 
 
The required notice must be directly provided to the affected individuals by 
one of the following methods: 
 

A. Written notice;  
 

B. Electronic notice, provided that the person to whom notice is required to 
be provided has expressly consented to receiving notice in electronic form 
and a log of each electronic notification is kept by the Town; and provided 
further that no person or business may require a person to consent to 
accepting notice in electronic form as a condition of establishing any 
business relationship or engaging in any transaction;  



 

 
4 

 
C. Telephone notification, provided that a log of each telephone notification is 

kept by the Town; or  
 

D. Substitute notice, if the Town demonstrates to the State Attorney General 
that the cost of providing notice would exceed $250,000 or that the 
number of individuals to be notified exceeds 500,000, or the Town does 
not have sufficient contact information. Substitute notice must include all 
of the following: 

 
(1) E-mail notice when the Town has an e-mail address for the subject 

persons, except if the breached information includes an e-mail 
address in combination with a password or security question and 
answer that would permit access to the online account, in which case 
the Town shall instead provide clear and conspicuous notice delivered 
to the consumer online when the consumer is connected to the online 
account from an internet protocol address or from an online location 
which the Town knows the consumer customarily uses to access the 
online account; 

 
(2) Conspicuous posting of the notice on the Town's website page, if the 

Town maintains one; and 
 

(3) Notification to major state-wide media. 
 

 
Sec. 3  Severability 
 
If any clause, sentence, phrase, paragraph or any part of this Local Law shall for any 
reason be adjudicated finally by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such 
judgment shall not affect, impair or invalidate the remainder of this Local law, but shall be 
confined in its operation and effect to the clause, sentence, phrase, paragraph or part 
thereof, directly involved in the controversy or action in which such judgment shall have 
been rendered.  It is hereby declared to be the legislative intent that the remainder of this 
Local Law would have been adopted had any such provision been excluded. 
 
 
Sec. 4  Effective Date 
 
This Local Law shall take effect immediately upon filing with the Secretary of State. 



MEMORANDUM 
To: Town Board Members 

From: Robert B. Koegel/Joy E. Brown 

Date: March 10, 2020 

Regarding: Local Law #3 of 2020 -  Town Code Change to update Computer System Security 

Breach Notification Policy  
 

For Meeting On: March 17, 2020 

 

Below is the “marked up” version of section 8-3, 8-4 and 8-8 of the Computer System Security 
Breach Notification Policy: 

 

 

§ 8-3. Authority. 
 

This chapter is enacted pursuant to the New York State Constitution, New York Municipal Home Rule Law 
§ 10, General Business Law §§ 899-aa and 899-bb, and New York State Technology Law § 208, and 
may be amended from time to time by Town Board resolution or local law. 

 
 
 

§ 8-4. Definitions. 
 
As used in this chapter, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated: 
 
BREACH OF SECURITY OF THE SYSTEM — unauthorized access to or acquisition of, or access to or 
acquisition without valid authorization, of computerized data that compromises the security, 
confidentiality, or integrity of personal private information maintained by the Town. Good faith access to, 
or acquisition of, personal private information by an employee or agent of the Town for the purposes of 
the employee or agent is not a breach of the security of the system, provided that the private information 
is not used or subject to unauthorized disclosure.  
 
In determining whether information has been accessed, or is reasonably believed to have been 
accessed, by an unauthorized person or a person without valid authorization, the Town may 
consider, among other factors, indications that the information was viewed, communicated with, 
used, or altered by a person without valid authorization or by an unauthorized person. 
 
In determining whether information has been acquired, or is reasonably believed to have been acquired, 
by an unauthorized person or a person without valid authorization, the Town may consider the following 
factors, among others: 
 
A. Indications that the information is in the physical possession and control of an unauthorized person, 

such as a lost or stolen computer or other device containing information; or 
 
B. Indications that the information has been downloaded or copied; or 

 
C. Indications that the information was used by an unauthorized person, such as fraudulent accounts 

opened or instances of identity theft reported. 
 



CONSUMER REPORTING AGENCY — Any person or entity which, for monetary fees, dues or on a 
cooperative nonprofit basis, regularly engages in whole or in part in the practice of assembling or 
evaluating consumer credit information or other information on consumers for the purpose of 
furnishing consumer reports to third parties, and which uses any means or facility of interstate commerce 
for the purpose of preparing or furnishing consumer reports. A list of consumer reporting agencies may be 
obtained upon request to the State Attorney General. 
 
DEPARTMENT — Any board, division, committee, commission, council, department, public authority, 
public benefit corporation, office or other governmental entity performing a governmental or proprietary 
function for the Town. 
 
PERSONAL INFORMATION — Any information concerning a natural person which, because of name, 
number, personal mark, or other identifier, can be used to identify that person. 
 
PRIVATE INFORMATION —  
 
A. Personal information in combination with any one or more of the following data elements, when either 

the personal information or the data element is not encrypted or encrypted with an encryption key that 
has also been accessed or acquired: 

 
(1) Social security number;  
(2) Driver’s license number or non-driver identification card number; or 
(3) Account number, credit or debit card number, in combination with any required security 

code, access code, or password which would permit access to an individual's financial 
account.  

 
A. Private Information means either: 

 
(i.) Personal information consisting of any information in combination with any one or more 

of the following data elements, when either the data element or the combination of 
personal information plus the data element is not encrypted or encrypted with an 
encryption key that has also been accessed or acquired: 

 
(1) social security number;  
(2) driver’s license number or non-driver identification card number;  
(3) account number, credit or debit card number, in combination with any required 

security code, access code, password or other information which would permit 
access to an individual's financial account;  

(4) account number, or credit or debit card number, if circumstances exist wherein such 
number could be used to access to an individual's financial account without 
additional identifying information, security code, access code, or password;  

(5) biometric information, meaning data generated by electronic measurements of an 
individual's unique physical characteristics, such as fingerprint, voice print, or retina 
or iris image, or other unique physical representation or digital representation which 
are used to authenticate or ascertain the individual's identity; or 

 
(ii.) a user name or e-mail address in combination with a password or security question and 

answer that would permit access to an online account. 
 

B.  "Private information" does not include publicly available information that is lawfully made available to  
      the general public from Town records. 
 
TOWN — The Town of Pittsford, County of Monroe. 

  



§ 8-8. Method of notification. 
 
The required notice must be directly provided to the affected individuals by one of the following methods: 
 

A. Written notice;  
 

B. Electronic notice, provided that the person to whom notice is required to be provided has 
expressly consented to receiving notice in electronic form and a log of each electronic notification 
is kept by the Town; and provided further that no person or business may require a person to 
consent to accepting notice in electronic form as a condition of establishing any business 
relationship or engaging in any transaction;  

 
C. Telephone notification, provided that a log of each telephone notification is kept by the Town; or  

 
D. Substitute notice, if the Town demonstrates to the State Attorney General that the cost of 

providing notice would exceed $250,000 or that the number of individuals to be notified exceeds 
500,000, or the Town does not have sufficient contact information. Substitute notice must include 
all of the following: 

 
(1) E-mail notice, when the Town has an e-mail address for the subject persons; 

 
(1) E-mail notice when the Town has an e-mail address for the subject persons, except if 

the breached information includes an e-mail address in combination with a password 
or security question and answer that would permit access to the online account, in 
which case the Town shall instead provide clear and conspicuous notice delivered to 
the consumer online when the consumer is connected to the online account from an 
internet protocol address or from an online location which the Town knows the 
consumer customarily uses to access the online account; 
 

(2) Conspicuous posting of the notice on the Town's website page, if the Town maintains one; 
and 
 

(3) Notification to major state-wide media. 
 



 

 

1 

At a Regular Meeting of the Town Board 
of the Town of Pittsford, New York held 
at the Town Hall, Pittsford, New York, on 
the 17th day of March, 2020. 

 
PRESENT: William A. Smith, Jr., Supervisor 

Katherine Bohne Munzinger, Deputy Supervisor 
Kevin S. Beckford, Councilmember 
Cathleen A. Koshykar, Councilmember 
Stephanie Townsend, Councilmember 

 
ABSENT:  None 
____________________________________________________ 
 
  In the Matter 
 
   of 
 
THE ADOPTION OF PROPOSED LOCAL LAW NO.3  
of 2020: AMENDING CHAPTER 8 OF THE TOWN OF  
PITTSFORD MUNICIPAL CODE ENTITLED COMPUTER  
SYSTEM SECURITY BREACH NOTIFICATION POLICY 
____________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution to Set Public Hearing 

 
WHEREAS, true and correct copies of proposed Local Law No. 3 of 2020: 

Amending Chapter 8 of The Town of Pittsford Municipal Code Entitled “Computer System 

Security Breach Notification Policy”, were delivered to each member of the Town Board; 

and 

WHEREAS, due consideration has been given to the adoption of said proposed 

Local Law No. 3 of 2020, by all members of the Town Board who were present; and 

WHEREAS, it was the considered opinion of all members of the Town Board who 

were present that a public hearing should be held on the 21st day of April 2020, at 6:00 

p.m. at the Town Hall, 11 South Main Street, Pittsford, New York, to consider the adoption 

of said proposed Local Law No. 3 of 2020; 

NOW, on motion duly made and seconded, it was 

RESOLVED, that a public hearing be held on the 21st day of April, 2020, at 6:00 



 

 

2 

P.M., Local Time, at the Town Hall, 11 South Main Street, Pittsford, New York, on the 

question of the adoption of said proposed Local Law No. 3 of 2020; and be it further 

RESOLVED, that a Notice of Hearing and a copy of said proposed Local Law 3 of 

2020, or a summary thereof, be published in a newspaper previously designated as an 

official newspaper for publication of public notices, not less than five (5) days prior to said 

hearing; and be it further 

RESOLVED, that the Town Clerk shall post certified copies of both this resolution 

and said proposed Local Law No. 3 of 2020, or a summary thereof, on the bulletin board, 

maintained by the Town Clerk pursuant to § 40(6) of the Town Law, for a period of not 

less than five (5) days prior to said public hearing. 

Said matter having been put to a vote, the following votes were recorded: 

William A. Smith, Jr.   VOTING  Aye 

Katherine Bohne Munzinger VOTING  Aye 

Kevin S. Beckford   VOTING  Aye 

Cathleen A. Koshykar  VOTING  Aye 

Stephanie Townsend  VOTING  Aye 

The resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted. 

DATED: March 17, 2020 

 
_____________________________________ 
            Linda M. Dillon, Town Clerk 
 

 
I, LINDA M. DILLON, Clerk of the Town Board of the Town of Pittsford, New York, 

DO HEREBY CERTIFY that I have compared a copy of the resolution as herein specified 

with the original in the minutes of the meeting of the Town Board of the Town of Pittsford 

and that the same is a correct transcript thereof and the whole of the said original. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this ___ day of March, 

2020. 

 
_____________________________________ 
            Linda M. Dillon, Town Clerk 



 

 

 

 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

 PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, that a public hearing will be held by the Town 

Board of the Town of Pittsford, New York, at the Town Hall, 11 South Main 

Street, Pittsford, New York, on the 21st day of April, 2020, at 6:00 o’clock P.M., 

Local Time, on the proposed adoption of Local Law No. 3 of 2020 that would 

amend Chapter 8 of the Town Code entitled “Computer System Security Breach 

Notification Policy.” The specific language contained in proposed Local Law No. 

3 of 2020 is available for review in the Town Clerk’s Office.   

 The aforesaid public hearing has been directed to be held pursuant to a 

Resolution of the Town Board of the Town of Pittsford, New York, duly adopted 

at a meeting of said Board on the 17th day of March, 2020. 

 

Dated: March ___, 2020     Linda M. Dillon  
Town Clerk 

                                                                    Town of Pittsford  
                                                                              
                                                                                       



MEMORANDUM 
To: Town Board 

From: Gregory J Duane 

Date: March 9, 2020 

Regarding: Surplus Inventory 
 

For Meeting On: March 17, 2020 

 

 
 
Resolved that the following list of Items be declared surplus and disposed of in the 
proper manner as indicated below: 
 

Asset # Year Description Department  Cost  Disposition 

      
11181 1995 Fiberglass Step Ladder Bldg Maint $99.00 Junk 

11250 1995 6' Fiberglass Ladder Bldg Maint $92.00 Junk 

11269 1996 10' Fiberglass Ladder Bldg Maint $189.00 Junk 

11297 2003 Vacuum Hose Kit Bldg Maint $212.03 Junk 

11298 1999 Leaf Blower Bldg Maint $179.95 Junk 

15355 2005 Task Stool Bldg Maint $212.00 Junk 

16085 2006 Tool Box w/ Electrical Tools Bldg Maint $201.79 Junk 

16747 2012 High Back Chair Bldg Maint $99.95 Junk 

17236 2012 Salt Spredder Bldg Maint $206.99 Junk 

17260 2013 Vacuum Cleaner Bldg Maint $549.99 Junk 

17350 2011 Work Chair Bldg Maint $255.00 Junk 

17360 2012 Air Conditioner Bldg Maint $279.00 Junk 

17784 2014 Desk Return Bldg Maint $221.33 Junk 

17802 2015 Vacuum Cleaner Bldg Maint $436.33 Junk 

18026 2015 Shop Vac Blower Bldg Maint $184.08 Junk 

18038 2015 Air Conditioner Bldg Maint $303.05 Junk 

18040 2015 Air Conditioner Bldg Maint $299.00 Junk 

18041 2015 Air Conditioner Bldg Maint $239.00 Junk 

18150 2016 Air Conditioner Bldg Maint $236.55 Junk 

18151 2016 Air Conditioner Bldg Maint 236.55 Junk 

18266 2017 Mesh Chair Bldg Maint 146.25 Junk 

18296 2017 Baby Changing Station Bldg Maint 289.00 Junk 

18297 2017 Baby Changing Station Bldg Maint 289.00 Junk 

18503 2018 Vacuum Bldg Maint 449.00 Junk 

18733 2018 Shark Vacuum Bldg Maint 102.99 Junk 

18734 2018 Shark Vacuum Bldg Maint 102.99 Junk 

18735 2018 Shark Vacuum Bldg Maint 102.99 Junk 

18932 2019 Stadium File Bldg Maint 287.00 Junk 

19777 2019 Shark Vacuum Bldg Maint 105.39 Junk 

19779 2019 Shark Vacuum Bldg Maint 105.39 Junk 

    
 

 
16815 2010 Backpack Blower Parks 410.00 Junk 

    
 

 



11311 1985 Table PSD 91.80 Junk 

11312 1985 Table  PSD 91.80 Junk 

13755 1998 Grinder PSD 102.27 Junk 

14205 2004 Dehumidifier PSD 266.75 Junk 

15934 2007 Mainline Sewer Camera PSD 63,908.00 Trade-In 

15962 2008 Enclosed Trailer PSD 7,030.00 Auction 

15992 2010 Flush Truck PSD 174,006.00 Auction 

    
 

 

    
 

 
13539 1998 Chain Saw Hwy 499.95 Junk 

14418 2005 Office Chair Hwy 121.26 Junk 

14420 2006 Drill Hwy 109.95 Junk 

16074 2006 Drill Hwy 138.00 Junk 

16108 2006 Lug & Lock Flip Scoket Hwy 101.50 Junk 

16423 2008 21" Torch Hwy 364.64 Junk 

16463 2009 Chain Saw Hwy 479.00 Junk 

16470 2009 Underhood Light Hwy 100.00 Junk 

16675 2009 Arm Chair Hwy 511.30 Junk 

16676 2009 Arm Chair Hwy 511.30 Junk 

16677 2009 Arm Chair Hwy 511.30 Junk 

16699 2009 Drill Bit Set Hwy 269.00 Junk 

16953 2010 Office Chair Hwy 169.00 Junk 

17160 2011 Grease Gun Hwy 299.99 Junk 

17167 2011 Grease Gun Hwy 319.99 Junk 

17196 2012 
Racheting Quick-Clamp 
Tool Hwy 

144.70 
Junk 

17200 2012 Stop / Slow Paddle Sign Hwy 133.00 Junk 

17201 2012 Stop / Slow Paddle Sign Hwy 133.00 Junk 

17924 2015 Backpack Blower Hwy 409.96 Junk 

18807 2016 Jump Booster Pack Hwy 179.95 Junk 

18808 2016 Pry Bar Hwy 101.50 Junk 

    
 

 
3074 1972 Low Wooden Bench Library 240.00 Junk 

13177 2000 Oak Stool Library 152.10 Junk 

13184 2000 Oak Stool Library 152.10 Junk 

13278 2005 Story Carrel Library 8,516.10 Junk 

15342 2005 Armchair Library 165.08 Junk 

15347 2005 Armchair Library 165.08 Junk 

15348 2005 Armchair Library 165.08 Junk 

15349 2005 Armchair Library 165.08 Junk 

15398 2005 Armchair Library 275.39 Junk 

15439 2005 Armchair Library 289.42 Junk 

15443 2005 Armchair Library 289.42 Junk 

15885 2008 Digital Photo Frame Library 212.99 Junk 

    
 

 

    
 

 

      

    $269,015.34  
    
 





























































































MEMORANDUM 
To: Pittsford Town Board 

From: Paul Schenkel - Commissioner of Public Works 

Date: March 13, 2020 

Regarding: Award Bid for Erie Canal Park and Preserve Elevated Boardwalk 
 

For Meeting On: March 17, 2020 

 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 

Preparations for the Erie Canal Park and Preserve have begun.  Department of Public 
Works crews have been clearing vegetation for the construction of the trail.  As you may recall, 
work on the trail is to be completed by the Town while reconstruction of the historic barn and 
elevated boardwalk were to be completed by contractors.  Previously, a budget of $354,500 
was established by Town Board, of which $177,250 was to be reimbursed by New York State 
as part of the grant.   

 
On February 25, 2020, we opened sealed bids for the Erie Canal Park and Preserve 

Barn Reconstruction.  Estimates by our Architects suggested that probable costs should be 
$208,379 for the base bid reconstruction of the barn while the alternates should total $175,702, 
bringing total barn costs to $384,081. Results of the bid are as follows: 

 
Vendor Base Bid Total Alternates Total Project 

DGA Construction Group $371,561 $169,207 $540,768 
 
On March 3, 2020, we opened sealed bids for the Erie Canal Park and Preserve 

Elevated Boardwalk.  Estimates by our Landscape Architect suggested that the probable costs 
should be $150,206.  Results of the bid are as follows: 

 
Vendor Base Bid 

CP Ward $156,500 
DiFiore Construction $180,500 
Mericon Enterprises $241,900 
Josh Landscape $293,350 
Testa Construction $303,648 

 
 Attached you will find a budget outlining all our current and estimated costs for this 
project.  As you can see, when you incorporate the elevated boardwalk costs, with our self-
perform estimates and costs to date with planning and design, we fall within budget.  I suggest 
that Town Board award the Elevated Boardwalk bid to CP Ward as the lowest responsible 
bidder.  As with all construction projects, a contingency budget should be included to cover any 
unforeseen circumstances.  As for the barn bid, the single bid far exceeded estimates.  I 
suggest that Town Board reject that bid.  I recommend that we continue to look for available 
grant funds and to rebid that portion of the project when conditions are more favorable. 



In the event the Town Board determines that the proposed actions should be taken, the 
following Resolutions are suggested: 
 

 
 
 
RESOLVED, the Town Board award the Erie Canal Park and Preserve Elevated 

Boardwalk bid for $156,500 to CP Ward as lowest responsible bidder. 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, the Town Board authorizes the Commissioner of Public Works 

to sign changes orders up to $7,825 or 5% of the contract cost. 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, the Town Board reject all bids related to the Erie Canal Park 

and Preserve Barn Reconstruction project 
 



MEMORANDUM 
To: Pittsford Town Board 

From: Cheryl Fleming, Personnel Director 

Date: March 12, 2020 

Regarding: Recommendations for Hiring/Personnel Adjustments 
 

For Meeting On: March 17, 2020 

 

1. The following employee(s) are recommended as a new hire based on the recommendation of 

the Functional Coordinator(s) for these areas:  
 

Name    Dept       Position     Rate   Date of Hire 

Kimberly Mitchell Maintenance Cleaner II – FT   $13.50  03/05/2020 

Meghan Layer  Recreation REC Assistant I – PT   $11.80  03/19/2020 

      

All the proper reviews and background checks have been completed for these candidate(s) and 

have received appropriate sign off by the Town Board representative.  
 

Name    Dept       Position     Rate   Date of Hire 

Kimberly Mitchell Maintenance Cleaner II – FT    $13.50  03/05/2020 

Meghan Layer  Recreation REC Assistant I – PT   $11.80  03/19/2020 

 

 
In the event the Town Board determines that the proposed action should be taken, I move that the subject 
employees be approved for the date of hire as indicated.   
 

 

2. The following employee(s) are recommended for a status change and/or salary change due to 

a change in status. 

 

Name         Position  Reason for Change  Rate          Effective Date 

Robyn Avery  Librarian Trainee – Title Change   $19.46  03/30/2020 

   PT 

Melissa Desir  Librarian Trainee – Title Change   $19.46  03/30/2020 

   PT 

Annalisa Foster     Rec Asst III –  Added Position  $13.43  03/17/2020 

   Birthday Attendant PT 

Mary Magguilli     Rec Asst III –  Added Position  $13.43  03/17/2020 

   Birthday Attendant PT 

Ella Zombek     Rec Asst III –  Added Position  $13.43  03/17/2020 

   Birthday Attendant PT 

Meghan Brooks     Rec Asst III –  Added Position  $13.43  04/04/2020 

   Birthday Attendant PT 

Abena Tonge     Rec Asst III –  Added Position  $13.43  04/04/2020 

   Birthday Attendant PT 

 

 

Should the Board approve the above recommendations and personnel adjustments, the following 

resolution is being proposed, RESOLVED, that the Town Board approves the status and salary 

changes for the following employee(s): 

 



Name         Position  Reason for Change  Rate          Effective Date 

Robyn Avery  Librarian Trainee – Title Change   $19.46  03/30/2020 

   PT 

Melissa Desir  Librarian Trainee – Title Change   $19.46  03/30/2020 

   PT 

Annalisa Foster     Rec Asst III –  Added Position  $13.43  03/17/2020 

   Birthday Attendant PT 

Mary Magguilli     Rec Asst III –  Added Position  $13.43  03/17/2020 

   Birthday Attendant PT 

Ella Zombek     Rec Asst III –  Added Position  $13.43  03/17/2020 

   Birthday Attendant PT 

Meghan Brooks     Rec Asst III –  Added Position  $13.43  04/04/2020 

   Birthday Attendant PT 

Abena Tonge     Rec Asst III –  Added Position  $13.43  04/04/2020 

   Birthday Attendant PT 

    

 
In the event the Town Board determines that the proposed action should be taken, I move that the subject 
employees be approved for the date of status change as indicated. 

 

 

 


	01 Agenda 3-17-20
	02  03 03 20 T Bd min (002)
	03 CCA Agreement resolution
	03a CCA Agreement--03-10-20 (Pittsford Town)(execution)
	03b Local Law No. 3 of 2020 - Hearing Memo
	04a Local Law No. 3 of 2020 - Amending Code Chapter 8 Computer System Security Breach Notification Policy
	04b Marked up agreement
	04c Local Law No. 3 of 2020 - Hearing Resolution
	04d  Notice of Hearing LL
	05 March Surplus Res
	05a Accounts Payable Listing
	05b March Expense Report
	05c March Revenue Report
	07 Award Bid for Erie Canal Park and Preserve Elevated Boardwalk Attachment
	08 Hiring Resolution 03172020



